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Administrative Review  
 
Date:   June 12, 2023 

To:   Zoning Board of Adjustment 

From:  Terrence Dolan, Community Development Director 

Subject:  Case #2023-07 Hitchiner Manufacturing Co. Inc, for the property located at 96 Old Wilton 
Road,  Tax Map 7, Lot 20 - Special Exception Application  

 

The applicant, having recently purchased the existing (partially) developed site, is before the Board of Adjustment 
seeking a Special Exception from the Milford Zoning Ordinance, Article VI, Sections 6.02.6.B to disturb 
approximately 4,830 square feet of wetland buffer area to allow for improved site access areas surrounding the 
approximately twelve year old facility, trenching for new natural gas lines, new underground power & underground 
communication services, and related stormwater water management structures for a property located in the 
Integrated Commercial-Industrial-2 (“ICI-2”) Zoning District. In reviewing the files for this property, I offer the 
following comments: 

1. Existing Conditions: 
a. The subject property’s buildable footprint is approximately 2.54 acres of a total site of approximately 5.94 

acres.  (The remaining 3.4 acres of the site lie within a June 2004-recorded Conservation Easement, which 
encumbers the southerly portion of the referenced Lot 20, while also encumbering portions of Map 20, Lots 
18 & 19).  

The existing site has double road frontage, with frontage along both Old Wilton Road (+/- 449 linear feet) 
and Perry Road (+/- 418 linear feet). The property is only partially developed with adjoining “Units 1-5”, 
pursuant to the approved Major Site Plan, last approved by the Planning Board in 2007. These units are 
presently divided amongst two tenants; with areas for Warehousing Use (Units #1 & #2), while the new 
owners wish to seek approval from the Planning Board to convert the recent usage of the remaining Units 
(#3-#5) from Warehousing to Manufacturing to serve their own needs. They shall be seeking approval of a 
“Change of Use” request from the Planning Board on June, 20, 2023.  

The separate “Units #7-#12”, (originally proposed and approved to be a separate building structure, along 
the site’s Perry Road frontage) have not been built, to date. The entire development site, known as “Perry 
Fields” is essentially cleared, with the portion of the overall conservation easement lands that lie within Lot 
20, consisting predominately of wet pasture, with scattered tree cover. 

b. The property is currently serviced by municipal water and sewer.  

c. The subject property is completely established within the Integrated Commercial-Industrial-2 (“ICI-2”) 
Zoning District. To the north, (across Old Wilton Road) the subject property abuts an existing industrial 
site (“ICI-2” zoned), also owned by the applicant. To the east, the property abuts undeveloped property, 
also owned by the applicant (“ICI-2” zoned). To the west, (across Perry Road) lies undeveloped “ICI-2” 
zoned property. To the south of the developed (northerly) portion of subject parcel lies the referenced 
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conservation easement portion of Lot 20, with additional “ICI-2” zoned properties further south of the 
subject site along Perry Road. 

d. The property falls within the Level 1 Groundwater Protection District. The purpose of the district is to 
preserve, maintain, and protect from contamination existing and potential groundwater supply areas.    

2. The proposal calls for the impact of 4,830 square feet of Wetland Buffer Area. (See attached site plan, dated 
6/07/23).  

No impacts to this site’s portion of the previously recorded (2004) Conservation Easement Area are proposed.  

In 2003, the State of New Hampshire’s Department of Environmental Services (NHDES) issued a Wetland 
Dredge & Fill Permit for the developed portion of the site, in the amount of 18,750 square feet (.43 acre) of 
wetland impact, for which the overall, multi-lot Conservation Easement Area was ultimately executed in 
favor of the Town of Milford, (i.e. the Conservation Commission).  

The applicant is presently before ZBA only seeking a Special Exception for the proposed impacts to the 
related and established wetland buffers. 

3. The disturbance of wetland buffer areas is permitted by Special Exception pursuant to Section 6.02.6, so long 
as the applicant, pursuant to Section 6.02.7, demonstrates by plan or example that the following factors have 
been considered in their design:  

1. The need for the proposed project;  

2. The plan proposed is the alternative with the least impact to the wetlands, surface waters and/or their 
associated buffers;  

3. The impact on plants, fish and wildlife; 

4. The impact on the quantity and/or quality of surface and ground water;  

5. The potential to cause or increase flooding, erosion, or sedimentation;  

6. The cumulative impact that would result if all parties owning or abutting a portion of the affected 
wetland, wetland complex and/or buffer area were also permitted alterations to the wetland and buffer 
proportional to the extent of their property rights;  

7. The impact of the proposed project on the values and functions of the total wetland or wetland 
complex. 

(Included in the application, the applicant has provided responses to each of the criteria. See attached.)  

4. On June 6, 2023, the applicant appeared before the Milford Conservation Commission at the site, where the 
applicant convened a site walk to discuss the application, along with members of the Planning Board and 
members of the general public in attendance.  

On June 8, 2023, the applicant once again appeared before the Milford Conservation Commission to formally 
present their proposal to the full Commission. (See attached Commission Memorandum, dated 6/08/23).  

 

 

 



3 
 

Staff Comments: 

a. The applicant should explain the design and layout of the proposed driveways access and other site 
improvements they propose, and how the site was considered to minimize the overall impact to both the 
delineated wetland resource areas and buffer.   

b. The applicant should review any stormwater management design revisions that were considered to 
minimize the overall impact to the wetland buffer.  

c. The applicant should explain how the project will ensure the continued protection of the Town’s 
groundwater.  

d. In addition to requiring a Special Exception, the project will also require approval by the Planning Board 
for a “Change of Use” for converting the existing building (Units 3-5) from Warehousing Usage to 
Manufacturing Use. Both of those uses are deemed as Acceptable Uses within the “ICI-2” Zoning 
District. This Planning Board Hearing is scheduled for June 20, 2023. 
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